
Hamilton County Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Boyd

AGENDA January 15, 2014

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION -

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG - Commissioner Boyd

Presentation CALEA Program Managers Awards for the 911 Center and HCSO - Sheriff Hammond -
Commission Meeting - January 15, 2014

Minutes November 27, 2013 Recessed Meeting Minutes

Minutes November 27, 2013 Agenda Session Minutes

Minutes December 4, 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Minutes December 11, 2013 Recessed Meeting Minutes

Minutes December 18, 2013 Recessed Meeting Minutes

Minutes December 26, 2013 Recessed Meeting Minutes

Minutes January 2, 2014 Recessed Meeting Minutes

Res. No. 114-1 A Resolution to approve and accept applications for notary public positions, oaths of Deputy
Sheriffs, and to file a modified order by the Mayor of Hamilton County approving joint petition for
consolidation of North West Utility District and Mowbray Utility District of Hamilton County,
Tennessee.

Res. No. 114-2 A Resolution to rezone from R-2A Rural Residential District to A-1 Agricultural District, property
located at 10925 Highway 58.

Res. No. 114-3 A Resolution to rezone from R-3 Apartment-Townhouse District to R-1 Single Family Residential
District, property located at 8801 Wandering Way.

Res. No. 114-4 A Resolution to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District and R-2A Rural Residential District to R-1
Single Family Residential District, property located at 9113 & 9153 Highway 58.

Res. No. 114-5 A Resolution to rezone from R-1 Residential District to A-1 Agricultural District, property located
at 5108 Highway 60.

Report Order of Designation - Planning Commission - Todd Leamon - December 9, 2013

Report Order of Designation - Transportation Planning Organization - Todd Leamon - December 17,
2013

Report Order of Reappointment - Walden's Ridge Utility District - Frank Grove Jr.- 4 years

Report Order of Designation - Transportation Planning Organization - Todd Leamon - January 7, 2014

Report Trustee Monthly Report - November 2013

Report Trustee Excess Fee Report - November 2013

Res. No. 114-6 A Resolution accepting the bid of Insight Public Sector for Microsoft Windows 8 Pro-upgrade
volume licenses amounting to $24,886.00 for the Sheriff’s Department and authorizing the
County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 114-7 A Resolution accepting the bid of Chrysler Dodge Jeep Ram of Columbia for one (1) crew cab
pickup truck amounting to $24,305.00 for the Sheriff’s Department and authorizing the County
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 114-8 A Resolution accepting the proposal of Edge Access, Inc. to provide Inmate Video Visitation for
the Hamilton County Jail and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to
implement this Resolution.



Res. No. 114-9 A Resolution to authorize the County Mayor to enter into and execute a contract with the State of
Tennessee, Department of Children's Services (DCS) to receive $45,000.00 from the State
Supplement Fund to be used for the Vocational Educational Program within the Detention
Center of the Hamilton County Juvenile Court.

Res. No. 114-10 A Resolution accepting the bid of Adman Electric, Inc. for the Juvenile Court Child Support
Services fire alarm and security upgrades amounting to $62,817.00 and authorizing the County
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution.

Res. No. 114-11 A Resolution accepting the bid of Beaman Automotive Group for one (1) heavy duty cargo van
amounting to $21,078.00 for the Telecommunications Department and authorizing the County
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 114-12 Res#114-12 Pulled

Res. No. 114-13 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to renew the agreement with the State of Tennessee
on behalf of the Tennessee Bureau of Investigation for Hamilton County Information Technology
Services and Hamilton County Geographic Information Systems to provide professional services
in support and development of the Tennessee Methamphetamine Task Force (TMTF)
Information System not to exceed $246,126.

Res. No. 114-14 A Resolution ratifying the purchase of gasoline and diesel fuel for the period of November 1,
2013, through November 30, 2013, and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts
necessary to implement this resolution.

Res. No. 114-15 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to execute a contract with the Department of Military
of the Tennessee Emergency Management Agency for a 2013 Homeland Security grant with a
period of 09/01/2013 through 04/30/2015 and amending the budget of the Emergency Services
Department by adding $148,563.35 to Revenues and Expenditures.

Res. No. 114-16 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor on behalf of Hamilton County, Tennessee, the
Health Services Division, operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department to
accept an award from the Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) in the amount
of $50,760 for the provision of outreach and enrollment activities for the time period November 1,
2013 to October 31, 2014 and increase the revenue and expense budgets by $50,760.

Res. No. 114-17 A Resolution accepting the bid of Tri-Con, Inc. for construction of the East Brainerd Elementary
School amounting to $23,142,000.00 and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts
necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 114-18 A Resolution accepting the bid of Beaman Automotive Group for one (1) 4x4 pickup truck
amounting to $22,218.00 for the Building Inspection Department and authorizing the County
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 114-19 A Resolution to amend the "Master List of Roads and Speed Limits" so as to accept the
following district road and to establish a speed limit therefor: Kennerly Court as extended.

Res. No. 114-20 A Resolution to amend the "Master List of Roads and Speed Limits" so as to accept the
following district road and to establish a speed limit therefore: Maple Grove Lane.

Res. No. 114-21 A Resolution accepting the bid of Helton Construction Company, Inc. for construction of the
Hamilton County Emergency Vehicle Storage Building amounting to $585,700.00 and
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 114-22 A Resolution to authorize the County Mayor to enter into and execute a ground lease agreement
between Norfolk Southern Railway Company (NS) and Hamilton County, Tennessee, said lease
commencing January 1, 2014 and terminating December 31, 2044.

Res. No. 114-23 A Resolution to authorize the County Mayor to enter into and execute two (2) license
agreements and pay fees to Norfolk Southern Railway Company (NS) for the license to enter
upon and make modifications to right-of-way and/or appurtenances rendered necessary on
property owned or controlled by NS required for the construction of the new Tennessee
Riverpark Downtown Segment Phase 1 and 2, for an amount not to exceed $515,638.00, said
agreements commencing on January 1, 2014 and terminating December 31, 2044.

Res. No. 114-24 A Resolution authorizing payment for two (2) easements in the amount of $167,175.00 required
for the construction of the Tennessee Riverwalk Downtown Segment Phase 1 and 2, and
authorizing the County Mayor to sign all documents necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 114-25 A Resolution to approve acceptance of an easement from the City of Chattanooga allowing
Hamilton County to construct the Tennessee Riverwalk Downtown Segment Phase 1 and 2.



Res. No. 114-26 A Resolution authorizing payment to CSX Transportation, Inc. for easements in the amount of
$30,000.00 required for the construction of the Tennessee Riverwalk Downtown Segment Phase
1 and 2, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign all documents necessary to implement this
Resolution.

Res. No. 114-27 A Resolution (1) establishing the minimum bid amount for certain parcels of property acquired by
Hamilton County through previous delinquent tax sales, (2) authorizing the offer of said parcels
for sale at that minimum bid amount, and (3) authorizing certain said parcels to be offered for
sale for an amount less than the total amount of taxes, penalty, cost, and interest accumulated
against the property.

Res. No. 114-28 A Resolution approving the continued engaging of Will Denami as lobbyist for Hamilton County
before the Tennessee General Assembly.

Res. No. 114-29 A Resolution approving an amendment to the Hamilton County Employee Handbook.

Res. No. 114-30 A Resolution authorizing the payment of One Hundred Eighty Thousand Dollars ($180,000.00) in
settlement of claims against Hamilton County as brought by former employee of the Hamilton
County Health Department Nancy Beckham for  wrongful termination.

Res. No. 114-31 A Resolution amending the Insurance Budget of Hamilton County, Tennessee by the sum of
Fifty Eight Thousand Two Hundred Forty and 39/100 dollars ($58,240.39) to provide for the
payment of an arbitration award to Carolina Casualty, as surety for WDB Contracting, LLC,
regarding the Soddy Daisy High School renovations and gymnasium project in 2003.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

DELEGATIONS ON MATTERS OTHER THAN ZONING

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Commission
meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, to and for the
benefit of the Commission.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Commission
and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the
Commission in part or as a whole.  No member of the community is required to
attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no impact on
their right to actively participate in the business of the Commission.



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

NOVEMBER 27, 2013 
 

 

 1

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  November 27, 2013 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 27th day of November, 2013, a Recessed 

Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit: -- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Fred Skillern, Chairman. County Clerk 

Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Henry, Commissioner Mackey, and Chairman Skillern. Total 

present - 9.  Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his  

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and Assistant County Auditor Lee 

Brouner. 

 

Pastor Chris Kidwell, of The Zacchaeus Group, gave the invocation. 

Commissioner Bankston led in the pledge to the flag.  

 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

NOVEMBER 27, 2013 
 

 

 2

Chairman Skillern asked Commissioners and the Mayor’s staff if there was any 

business to be brought before the Recessed Meeting.  

 

Hearing none, Chairman Skillern declared the meeting adjourned.   

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 
      

                                                                           _______________________________    
   William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 

 
Approved: 
 
 
____                   
Date     Clerk’s Initials 
 
 
 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 27, 2013 
 
 

 1

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  November 27, 2013 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 27th day of November, 2013, an Agenda 

Preparation Session of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and 

held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, 

when the following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Fred Skillern, Chairman.  County Clerk 

Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Henry, Commissioner Mackey, and Chairman Skillern.  Total 

present - 9.  Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his  

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and Assistant County Auditor Lee 

Brouner. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 27, 2013 
 
 

 2

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

 

Chairman Skillern indicated the upcoming agenda items would be considered as 

follows: 

• Resolution No. 1213-1 was the usual County Clerk item regarding notaries, etc.  
This required no committee assignment. 

• Juvenile Court Clerk Fee Official Reports for the months of July and August 2013 
would be submitted as a matter of record. 

• A Trustee’s Excess Fee Report for the month of October 2013 would be 
submitted for the record. 

• Resolutions No. 1213-2 and 1213-3 were board appointments, requiring no 
assignment. 

• Resolutions No. 1213-4 through 1213-18 were assigned to the Finance 
Committee, chaired by Commissioner Graham.  

• Resolution No. 1213-19 was to be heard by a Committee of the Whole. 
 
 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1213-19 

 

Chairman Skillern spoke regarding Resolution No. 1213-19, which would name 

the Dallas Bay Volunteer Fire Department and Rescue, Inc.’s district station #3 “The 

Barker-Gates Fire Station”.  He stated that it was the County’s policy that no county-

owned buildings or facilities be named after living individuals.  He noted that the building 

outlined in today’s Resolution had been donated by Mrs. Macon Barker and the mother 

of Mrs. Charlie Gates. Chairman Skillern pointed out that one of these parties was still 

living.   

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 27, 2013 
 
 

 3

There was some discussion regarding whether today’s Resolution contained the 

appropriate language to waive the County’s policy. Commissioner Fields pointed out 

that the enactment paragraph of the Resolution stated that the Commission would 

waive its previous prohibition in order to name this building. Attorney Taylor indicated 

this language would be sufficient. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Skillern asked for announcements from members of the Commission.  

 

Members of the Commission, Attorney Taylor, and Mayor Coppinger wished 

everyone a happy Thanksgiving and safe travel. 

 

Commissioner Graham announced that the Grateful Gobbler walk would be held 

downtown on Thanksgiving morning. He invited anyone who was interested to 

participate. 

 

Commissioner Bankston informed everyone that the Spirit of Christmas parade 

would be held in Collegedale on Sunday, December 1st at 3:30 PM. He also invited 

everyone to attend. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 27, 2013 
 
 

 4

Members of the Commission and Mayor Coppinger spoke regarding the recent 

passing of Republic Parking System Founder and CEO Jim Berry, noting several 

valuable contributions he made to the community throughout his life.  They also asked 

that Mr. Berry’s family be remembered in everyone’s thoughts and prayers. 

 

Mayor Coppinger reported that a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) would be 

advertised in the local newspaper on Friday, November 29 for a new fire station to be 

built in the Apison community.  He indicated that a recommendation for an architect of 

this project would come before the Commission at a later date.  He also stated that as 

the County continued to grow, other areas in the county were being considered for 

potential locations of future fire stations. 

 

Mayor Coppinger stated that efforts were being made to draft a design bill policy 

to bring before the Commission for their consideration. He anticipated it would take a 

number of months in order to receive feedback from the local contractors and architects 

concerning this policy.  

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Skillern asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There 

were none. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 27, 2013 
 
 

 5

 

Being no further business, Chairman Skillern declared the meeting adjourned. 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

      

      _________________________________   
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 
           

_____   
Date      Clerk’s Initials 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 4, 2013 

 

 1

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Regular Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  December 4, 2013 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 4th day of December, 2013, a Regular 

Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Fred Skillern, Chairman.  County Clerk 

Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner 

Henry, Commissioner Mackey, and Chairman Skillern.  Commissioner Boyd was 

absent.  Total present - 8.  Total absent – 1. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his  

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

Attached hereto is a copy of the Public Notice of this meeting, which was 

published in a local newspaper and made a matter of record of this meeting. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 4, 2013 

 

 2

 Commissioner Bankston reported that Stephen Hampton with the Spiritual 

Assembly of Baha’is of Chattanooga, who was scheduled to give today’s invocation, 

was not in attendance.  Human Services Administrator Don Allen was asked to give the 

invocation and Commissioner Bankston led in the pledge to the flag.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Henry, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, that 

the minutes of the Recessed Meeting of November 13, 2013, the Agenda Preparation 

Session of November 13, 2013, and the Regular Meeting of November 20, 2013, be 

approved, treat same as read, made a matter of record and filed.  The foregoing Motion 

was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Commissioner Boyd was Total present – 8.  Total 

absent – 1.  Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

TRUSTEE’S EXCESS FEE REPORT 

 

The Trustee’s excess fee report for October 2013 was submitted and made a 

matter of record.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 4, 2013 

 

 3

 

JUVENILE COURT CLERK REPORT 

 

The July and August 2013 fee official reports for the office of Juvenile Court Clerk 

were submitted and made a matter of record of this meeting. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1213-1  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT 

APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS. 

 

 Chairman Skillern asked for a motion. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Henry, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1213-1.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman 

Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 8.  Total absent – 1.  Commissioner Boyd was absent.  

Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1213-2  A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT 

BY THE COUNTY MAYOR OF ONE MEMBER TO THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 4, 2013 

 

 4

COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR A TERM ENDING 

NOVEMBER 19, 2017. 

 

 Resolution No. 1213-2 confirms the reappointment of Tom Edd Wilson to the 

Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority Board for a four year term expiring 

November 19, 2017. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Haynes, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1213-2.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman 

Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 8.  Total absent – 1.  Commissioner Boyd was absent.  

Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1213-3  A RESOLUTION TO CONFIRM THE REAPPOINTMENT 

OF THREE MEMBERS BY THE COUNTY MAYOR TO THE STADIUM 

CORPORATION BOARD OF DIRECTORS, FOR TERMS ENDING NOVEMBER 19, 

2017. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 4, 2013 

 

 5

 Resolution No. 1213-3 confirms the reappointments of Ryan Crimmins, Jerre 

Haskew, and Gordon Davenport, Jr. to the Stadium Corporation Board of Directors for 

four year terms expiring November 19, 2017. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1213-3.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman 

Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 8.  Total absent – 1.  Commissioner Boyd was absent.  

Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1213-4  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSALS OF 

PROFESSIONAL RECOVERY CONSULTANTS, INC. AND AUTOMATED 

COLLECTION SERVICES, INC. (ACSI) TO PROVIDE DEBT COLLECTION 

SERVICES OF PAST DUE RECEIVABLES FOR THE OFFICES OF THE HAMILTON 

COUNTY COURT CLERKS AS WELL AS OTHER HAMILTON COUNTY OFFICES 

AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 

NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 4, 2013 

 

 6

 Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolution No. 1213-4 and 

stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended approval. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1213-4.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman 

Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 8.  Total absent – 1.  Commissioner Boyd was absent.  

Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1213-5  A RESOLUTION ADOPTING AN AMENDMENT TO 

TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED SECTION 8-21-1001(I) RELATIVE TO THE 

HAMILTON COUNTY REGISTER’S DATA PROCESSING FEES AS PASSED BY 

THE 103RD GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF TENNESSEE. 

 

 Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolution No. 1213-5 and 

stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended approval. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1213-5.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 4, 2013 

 

 7

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman 

Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 8.  Total absent – 1.  Commissioner Boyd was absent.  

Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1213-6  A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT A GRANT FROM THE 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE TITLED THE COMMUNITY 

ORIENTED POLICING SERVICES (COPS) HIRING PROGRAM WHICH WOULD 

DESIGNATE EIGHT (8) ADDITIONAL SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICERS FOR 

VARIOUS SCHOOLS IN HAMILTON COUNTY FOR THE NEXT FOUR YEARS, 

PROJECTED TO BEGIN IN THE NEAR FUTURE AND TO INCREASE (AMEND) THE 

SHERIFF’S FUND REVENUE BUDGET BY $1,000,000 AND THE EXPENDITURE 

BUDGET BY $1,889,141 AND THE CAPITAL OUTLAY BUDGET BY $400,000. 

 

 Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolution No. 1213-6 and 

stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended approval. He clarified 

for the record that this grant was for a three-year period. He stated that according to the 

information he received, the grant required the County’s participation for three years 

rather than four. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 4, 2013 

 

 8

 Sheriff Jim Hammond clarified that the grant required a fourth year of 

participation, noting that language in the Resolution stated “Hamilton County must 

provide a 30% match for this funding plus retain these SRO positions for one year after 

the end of the 36-month period at an estimated cost of $472,285.” 

 

 Commissioner Beck questioned whether a decision had been made regarding 

where the new School Resource Officers (SRO) would be placed.  Sheriff Hammond 

responded that SROs would be first replaced at schools where budget restraints had 

required him to move those officers to other positions.  The remaining officers would be 

dispersed among the schools that had the most incidents during the previous year. 

 

 Chairman Skillern emphasized that this would be one-time funding from the 

County’s general fund. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1213-6.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman 

Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 8.  Total absent – 1.  Commissioner Boyd was absent.  

Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 4, 2013 

 

 9

 

 Chairman Skillern asked that Resolutions No. 1213-7 through 1213-12 be 

considered together at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1213-7  A RESOLUTION ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO THE 

REGIONAL ADDRESSING POLICY FOR HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE AS 

DESCRIBED IN THE REVISIONS DOCUMENT ATTACHED AND AS 

DEMONSTRATED IN THE ATTACHED COPY OF THE POLICY. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1213-8 A RESOLUTION ALLOWING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 

ENTER INTO AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN HAMILTON COUNTY, 

THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA AND THE HAMILTON COUNTY 911 EMERGENCY 

COMMUNICATIONS DISTRICT PERTAINING TO THE ACQUISITION OF ADDRESS 

FIELD VERIFICATION SERVICES RESULTING IN AN ACCURATE ADDRESS 

DATABASE FOR HAMILTON COUNTY, THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA AND THE 

HAMILTON COUNTY 911 EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS DISTRICT AND TO 

AMEND THE HCGIS PARTNERSHIP REVENUE AND EXPENSE BUDGETS BY 

$615,769.33. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1213-9 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL FROM 

GEOCOMM, INC. FOR E-911 GIS SERVICES AND COUNTYWIDE ADDRESS FIELD 

VERIFICATION PROJECT AMOUNTING TO $923,654 FOR THE GEOGRAPHIC 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 4, 2013 

 

 10 

INFORMATION SYSTEMS DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 

MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1213-10  A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY 

MAYOR TO ACCEPT THE PROPERTY INSURANCE RENEWAL PROPOSAL FROM 

BB&T INSURANCE SERVICES, INC. - HUFFAKER & TRIMBLE AT THE COMBINED 

PROPERTY RATE OF $.0531 PER $100 OF INSURED VALUE FOR AN ESTIMATED 

ANNUAL PREMIUM OF $215,315. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1213-11  A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF 

GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE PERIOD OF OCTOBER 1, 2013, 

THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2013, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 

SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1213-12  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF MIDDLE 

TENNESSEE TURF, INC., BATTLE DITCH SOD FARM, AND JOHN DEERE 

LANDSCAPES FOR ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING DECEMBER 

4, 2013, THROUGH DECEMBER 3, 2014, FOR BERMUDA AND FESCUE SOD FOR 

THE RECREATION DEPARTMENT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 

SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 4, 2013 

 

 11 

 Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolution No. 1213-7 through 

1213-12 and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended approval.  

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

adopt Resolutions No. 1213-7 through 1213-12.  The foregoing Resolutions were 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 8.  Total absent – 1.  

Commissioner Boyd was absent.  Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

 Mayor Coppinger announced that GIS Manager Greg Butler had submitted his 

resignation in order to pursue another job opportunity. He expressed his appreciation to 

Mr. Butler for his 14 years of valuable service to the County. 

 

 Chairman Skillern asked that Resolutions No. 1213-13 through 1213-18 be 

considered together at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1213-13  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 4, 2013 

 

 12 

DEPARTMENT TO SIGN A CONTRACT IN THE AMOUNT OF $4,020 WITH THE 

TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH TO PROVIDE EMERGENCY DENTAL 

CARE FOR UNINSURED ADULTS AGES 19 – 64 YEARS FOR THE TIME PERIOD 

JULY 1, 2013 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2014. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1213-14  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF 

INTERNATIONAL FIRE PROTECTION, INC. FOR THE NEWELL TOWER 

ALTERATION OF PIPING ASSEMBLY AT FIRE PUMP AMOUNTING TO $22,440.00 

FOR THE ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY 

MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1213-15  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

AND THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA TO ENTER INTO AND 

EXECUTE A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH THE VIETNAM VETERANS OF AMERICA, 

CHAPTER 203, CHATTANOOGA, TENNESSEE, INC. FOR A PORTION OF 

PROPERTY OWNED JOINTLY BY HAMILTON COUNTY AND THE CITY OF 

CHATTANOOGA FORMERLY KNOWN AS THE U. S. ARMY RESERVE CENTER 

LOCATED AT 2029 EAST 23RD STREET. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1213-16  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT FOR THE 

ACQUISITION OF RIGHTS-OF-WAY REQUIRED FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 4, 2013 

 

 13 

THE OOLTEWAH-RINGGOLD ROAD AND STANDIFER GAP ROAD INTERSECTION 

IMPROVEMENTS IN THE AMOUNT OF $110,898 OF WHICH 80 PERCENT OF THE 

COST WILL BE REIMBURSED TO HAMILTON COUNTY BY THE TENNESSEE 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND 20 PERCENT MATCH TO BE PAID BY 

HAMILTON COUNTY. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1213-17  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF BOLIN 

ENTERPRISES, INC. DBA POWER LIFT FOUNDATION REPAIR FOR HAMILTON 

COUNTY COURTS BUILDING COLUMN REPAIR AMOUNTING TO $16,000.00 AND 

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1213-18  A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE BID OF METRO 

SERVICES, INC. FOR $150,700.00 FOR THE SILVERDALE FACILITY MOISTURE 

AND HUMIDITY CONTROL AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 

ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

 Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolution No. 1213-13 

through 1213-18 and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended 

approval.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 4, 2013 

 

 14 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolutions No. 1213-13 through 1213-18.  The foregoing Resolutions were 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 8.  Total absent – 1.  

Commissioner Boyd was absent.  Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1213-19  A RESOLUTION NAMING THE DALLAS BAY 

VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT AND RESCUE, INC.'S DISTRICT STATION #3 

"THE BARKER-GATES FIRE STATION". 

 

 Chairman Skillern reported that this Resolution had been heard by a Committee 

of the Whole. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Henry, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1213-19.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on 

a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present 

and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 4, 2013 

 

 15 

Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 8.  Total absent – 1.  Commissioner Boyd was absent.  

Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

DISCUSSION RE: A DAY ON THE HILL WITH COMMISSIONER BECK 

 

 Commissioner Beck welcomed a delegation from District 5 in attendance for 

today’s meeting.  He noted that their theme was being called “A Day on the Hill with 

Commissioner Beck”. They had attended a presentation earlier that day by Mayor 

Coppinger. Following adjournment of today’s meeting, they would also visit the County 

Jail and the Courts Building.  

 

 Commissioner Beck introduced Evelina Holmes, a resident at 512 Kilmer Street, 

who spoke as a representative from the group. Ms. Holmes also welcomed other 

individuals attending today’s discussion. She outlined various other governmental 

departments and organizations they planned to visit in the near future. 

 

 Commissioner Graham and Chairman Skillern thanked the group for attending 

today’s meeting. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Skillern asked for announcements from members of the Commission.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 4, 2013 

 

 16 

 

Commissioner Graham announced that the City of Red Bank Christmas Parade 

had been moved to Friday, December 13th. He invited anyone interested to attend. 

 

Commissioner Graham also reported that the MAINx24 festival would be held on 

Saturday, December 7th on Main Street. He noted there would be a pancake breakfast, 

a parade, as well as a number of local businesses involved in the festivities. He 

encouraged everyone to attend. 

 

Commissioner Graham further stated that the Lookout Valley Christmas parade 

would be on Saturday, December 14th.   

 

Members of the Commission, Attorney Taylor, and Mayor Coppinger wished 

everyone a merry Christmas and a happy New Year. 

 

Mayor Coppinger recognized Tri-Community Volunteer Fire Department Chief 

DeWayne Pitts in the audience. He thanked Mr. Pitts for his years of service in the 

community. He also welcomed former City of Chattanooga fireman Ron Gilbert, who 

was in the audience. 

 

Mayor Coppinger reported that Christmas at the Courthouse was being held this 

year at the Courthouse in celebration of the building’s 100 year anniversary. He invited 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 4, 2013 

 

 17 

everyone to attend one of the events, noting that a group from Lookout Valley 

Elementary School would be performing today. 

 

Chairman Skillern welcomed his wife Betty who was in the audience for today’s 

meeting. 

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Skillern asked for delegations on matters other than zoning.  

 

Rick Carpenter, a resident at 3119 Chicalilly Drive, addressed the Commission to 

discuss issues related to his residential sewer bill.  He reported that his water had 

recently been disconnected for non-payment by the Water and Wastewater Treatment 

Authority (WWTA). He indicated he had made several unsuccessful attempts to pay his 

bill using cash, as he did not have the ability to pay by electronic means. He noted his 

attempts to pay with cash had been refused by WWTA Executive Director Cleveland 

Grimes, a decision he stated had been defended by the WWTA’s attorney Chris Clem. 

Mr. Carpenter did not believe the WWTA had any legal basis to disconnect his service. 

 

Chairman Skillern replied that the Commission did not have any authority over 

the WWTA. He stated that if Mr. Carpenter wished, they could provide him with the list 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 4, 2013 

 

 18 

of the members serving on the WWTA Board of Commissioners as well as the time and 

location of their meetings.   

 

Mr. Carpenter thanked Chairman Skillern but responded that he already had this 

information. He requested that the Commission consider restructuring of the WWTA and 

its Board. 

 

Yolanda Denise Parmes Montgomery, a resident at 4420 Fagan Street Apt. B, 

addressed the Commission in support of prayer and the Bible in schools. She 

distributed a handout to members of the Commission regarding this matter. 

 

 Chairman Skillern reported that today’s meeting would be recessed until 

Wednesday, December 11.  Commissioners would not attend if no urgent business 

arose. This would allow a break for Commissioners to enjoy the holidays.  If business 

arises and it becomes necessary for Commissioners to attend on any of those dates, 

each Commissioner will receive notice to appear, and the media would also be notified.  

If no business arose, the December 11 meeting would then recess from meeting date to 

meeting date until January 8, 2014.  

 

There being no further business, Chairman Skillern declared the meeting in 

recess until Wednesday, December 11, 2013 at 9:30 AM.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 4, 2013 

 

 19 

Respectfully submitted: 

 
      

____________________________________    
     William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

Approved: 
   

_______   
Date     Clerk’s Initials 

 
 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

DECEMBER 11, 2013 
 
 
 

 1 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  December 11, 2013 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 11th day of December, 2013, a 

Recessed Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun 

and held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County 

Commission Room, when the following proceedings were held, to wit: -- 

 

Present was County Attorney Rheubin Taylor and Deputy County Clerk 

Michael Clark. 

 

County Attorney Taylor announced that there was no business to be 

conducted by the County Commission.  The meeting would stand in recess until 

Wednesday, December 18, 2013. 

 

Being no further business and no quorum present the meeting was 

recessed until Wednesday, December 18, 2013. 

 

    Respectfully submitted: 

 
      

____________________________________    
    William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 
 

Approved: 
 
____  ____________ 
Date   Clerk’s Initials 

 
 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

DECEMBER 18, 2013 
 
 
 

 1 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  December 18, 2013 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 18th day of December, 2013, a 

Recessed Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun 

and held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County 

Commission Room, when the following proceedings were held, to wit: -- 

 

Present was Assistant County Attorney Dee Hobbs and Deputy County 

Clerk Michael Clark. 

 

Assistant County Attorney Hobbs announced that there was no business 

to be conducted by the County Commission.  The meeting would stand in recess 

until Thursday, December 26, 2013. 

 

Being no further business and no quorum present the meeting was 

recessed until Thursday, December 26, 2013. 

 

    Respectfully submitted: 

 
      

____________________________________    
    William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 
 

Approved: 
 
 
____  ____________ 
Date   Clerk’s Initials 

 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

DECEMBER 26, 2013 
 
 
 

 1 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  December 26, 2013 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 26th day of December, 2013, a 

Recessed Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun 

and held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County 

Commission Room, when the following proceedings were held, to wit: -- 

 

Present was Assistant County Attorney Dee Hobbs and Deputy County 

Clerk Brooke Weaver. 

 

Assistant County Attorney Hobbs announced that there was no business 

to be conducted by the County Commission.  The meeting would stand in recess 

until Thursday, January 2, 2014. 

 

Being no further business and no quorum present the meeting was 

recessed until Thursday, January 2, 2014. 

 

    Respectfully submitted: 

 
      

____________________________________    
    William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 
 

Approved: 
 
 

____  _ ___ 
Date   Clerk’s Initials 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

JANUARY 2, 2014 
 
 
 

 1 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  January 2, 2014 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 2nd day of January, 2014, a Recessed 

Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at 

the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, 

when the following proceedings were held, to wit: -- 

 

Present was County Attorney Rheubin Taylor and Deputy County Clerk 

Michael Clark. 

 

County Attorney Taylor announced that there was no business to be 

conducted by the County Commission.  The meeting would stand in recess until 

Wednesday, January 8, 2014. 

 

Being no further business and no quorum present the meeting was 

recessed until Wednesday, January 8, 2014. 

 

    Respectfully submitted: 
 
      

____________________________________    
    William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 
 

Approved: 
 
 

____  _ ___ 
Date   Clerk’s Initials 



 

 

No. 114-1 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
   A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR 

NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, OATHS OF DEPUTY SHERIFFS, AND 
TO FILE A MODIFIED ORDER BY THE MAYOR OF HAMILTON 
COUNTY APPROVING JOINT PETITION FOR CONSOLIDATION OF 
NORTH WEST UTILITY DISTRICT AND MOWBRAY UTILITY 
DISTRICT OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE. 

 
   
 
WHEREAS, William F. (Bill) Knowles, Hamilton County Clerk, has certified according to the 

records of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled 
HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS have duly 
applied for the positions so sought; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled OATHS OF DEPUTY 
SHERIFFS have taken the oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has filed in his office the order approving modified joint 

petition for consolidation of NORTH WEST UTILITY DISTRICT and 
MOWBRAY UTILITY DISTRICT OF HAMILTON COUNTY, 
TENNESSEE. The consolidated district shall be known as the “NORTH WEST 
UTILITY DISTRICT OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE.”In 
accordance with T.C.A § 7-82-202(e)(2) commissioners for the consolidated 
district were appointed.  

 
  
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS: 
 

1. That the persons named on the listing labeled HAMILTON COUNTY 
NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS are hereby approved as applicants to be 
submitted to the Secretary of State; and 

 
2. That the persons named on the listing labeled OATHS OF DEPUTY 

SHERIFFS are accepted and the oaths therefore are approved as taken; and  
 

 3. That the Mayor of Hamilton County in accordance with T.C.A. § 7-82-
202(e)(1)(B) has filed a modified order with the County Clerk legally 
consolidating NORTH WEST UTILITY DISTRICT and MOWBRAY 
UTILITY DISTRICT OF HAMITLON COUNTY, TENNESSEE and said 
order is entered into the official minutes of the Hamilton County Board of 
Commissioners: and 

 
 4. That each such person named on any listing hereinabove mentioned (which listing 

is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby deemed to have 
been individually considered according to the particular matter relating thereto. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER PASSAGE. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 





























































 

 

No. 114-2 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM R-2A RURAL RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT TO A-1 AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT, PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 10925 HIGHWAY 58 

 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Paula Buchner petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County 
Regional Planning Commission to rezone from R-2A Rural Residential District to A-1 
Agricultural District, property located at 10925 Highway 58, and said Planning 
Commission after hearing recommended that this petition be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Paula Buchner requested that the County Commission consider 
said petition and notice has been published in a newspaper in general circulation in 
Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public hearing on January 
15, 2014, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such 
having been held. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE 
BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County 
be amended to rezone from R-2A Rural Residential District to A-1 Agricultural District, 
property located at 10925 Highway 58.  Being all that part of an unplatted tract of land 
located at 10925 Highway 58, which is currently zoned R-2A, being part of the 
property described in Deed Book 5916, Page 358, ROHC.  Tax Map 061-025.09 
(part) as shown on the attached map. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT 
FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 











 

 

No. 114-3 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM R-3 APARTMENT-TOWNHOUSE 
DISTRICT TO R-1 SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 8801 WANDERING WAY 
 
 WHEREAS, Robert E. Bowers petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County 
Regional Planning Commission to rezone from R-3 Apartment-Townhouse District to 
R-1 Single Family Residential District, property located at 8801 Wandering Way, and 
said Planning Commission after hearing recommended that this petition be approved; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, Robert E. Bowers requested that the County Commission 
consider said petition and notice has been published in a newspaper in general 
circulation in Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public hearing 
on January 15, 2014, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by law, 
and such having been held. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE 
BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County 
be amended to rezone from R-3 Apartment-Townhouse District to R-1 Single Family 
Residential District, property located at 8801 Wandering Way  An unplatted tract of 
land located at 8801 Wandering Way, beginning at the northwest corner of Tax Map 
150-173 going southwest 712.61 feet, thence southeast 709.23 feet, thence northeast 
522.12 feet, thence northwest 421.57 feet, thence 181.75 feet northeast, thence 
324.18 feet northwest to the point of beginning, being part of the property described in 
Deed Book 5181, Page 148, ROHC.  Tax Map 150-173 (part) as shown on the 
attached map. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT 
FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 











 

 

No. 114-4 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM A-1 AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT 
AND R-2A RURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO R-1 SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, PROPERTY LOCATED AT 9113 & 9153 
HIGHWAY 58 
 
 WHEREAS, Bill Fine petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional 
Planning Commission to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District and R-2A Rural 
Residential District to R-1 Single Family Residential District, property located at 9113 
& 9153 Highway 58, and said Planning Commission after hearing recommended that 
this petition be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Bill Fine requested that the County Commission consider said 
petition and notice has been published in a newspaper in general circulation in 
Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public hearing on January 
15, 2014, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such 
having been held. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE 
BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County 
be amended to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District and R-2A Rural Residential 
District to R-1 Single Family Residential District, property located at 9113 & 9153 
Highway 58. An unplatted tract of land located at 9153 Highway 58 and all that part of 
an unplatted tract of land at 9113 Highway 58, being on the west side of Highway 58, 
being properties described as Tracts Two (2) and Three (3) in Deed Book 9883, Page 
735, ROHC.  Tax Maps 086-013 and 086-035 as shown on the attached map. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT 
FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 













 

 

No. 114-5 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM R-1 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO A-1 
AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT, PROPERTY LOCATED AT 5108 HIGHWAY 60 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Charles E. McMillian petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County 
Regional Planning Commission to rezone from R-1 Residential District to A-1 
Agricultural District, property located at 5108 Highway 60, and said Planning 
Commission after hearing recommended that this petition be approved; and 
 WHEREAS, Charles E. McMillian requested that the County Commission 
consider said petition and notice has been published in a newspaper in general 
circulation in Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public hearing 
on January 15 2014, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by law, 
and such having been held. 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE 
BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County 
be amended to rezone from R-1 Residential District to A-1 Agricultural District, 
property located at 5108 Highway 60.  An unplatted tract of land located at 5108 
Highway 60, being the property described in Deed Book 5217, Page 573, ROHC.  Tax 
Map 023-001 as shown on the attached map. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 

















































 

 

No. 114-6 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF INSIGHT PUBLIC SECTOR FOR 
MICROSOFT WINDOWS 8 PRO-UPGRADE VOLUME LICENSES AMOUNTING TO 
$24,886.00 FOR THE SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 
MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
  
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for two-hundred (200) 

Microsoft Windows 8 Pro-upgrade volume licenses for the Sheriff’s 
Department; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the bid from Insight Public Sector amounting to $24,886.00 was considered to 

be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Insight Public Sector for Microsoft Windows 8 Pro-upgrade volume licenses 
amounting to $24,886.00 for the Sheriff’s Department is hereby accepted, said bid being the 
lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts 
necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 















 

 

No. 114-7 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF CHRYSLER DODGE JEEP RAM OF 
COLUMBIA FOR ONE (1) CREW CAB PICKUP TRUCK AMOUNTING TO $24,305.00 
FOR THE SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 
SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) crew cab 

pickup truck for the Sheriff’s Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Chrysler Dodge Jeep Ram of Columbia amounting to $24,305.00 

was considered to be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Chrysler Dodge Jeep Ram of Columbia for one (1) crew cab pickup truck 
amounting to $24,305.00 for the Sheriff’s Department is hereby accepted, said bid being the 
lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts 
necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 

















 

 

No. 114-8 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL OF EDGE ACCESS, INC. TO PROVIDE INMATE VIDEO 
VISITATION FOR THE HAMILTON COUNTY JAIL AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 
SIGN ANY CONTRACT NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
 
WHEREAS; proposals were received in response to public advertisement for a four (4) year contract with the 

option to renew for two (2) additional one (1) year renewals, if mutually agreeable with both 
contracting parties, to provide inmate video visitation for the Hamilton County Jail; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the proposals were evaluated based on the criteria listed in the Request for Proposal and later 

cost evaluated on the costs to the inmate / visitor when utilizing the system and revenue 
potential for Hamilton County; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the proposal offered by Edge Access, Inc. was considered to be the best overall proposal 

received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, this should result in both a cost savings to the Sheriff’s office by reducing corrections officers’ 

hours necessary to move inmates to the visitation area, as well as generate revenue from the 
County’s share of the commission from the call charges to the visitor; and, 

 
WHEREAS, County funds will not be required to support this service. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the proposal from Edge Access, Inc. to provide Inmate Video Visitation for the Hamilton County Jail is 
hereby accepted, said proposal being the best overall proposal received and authorizing the County Mayor to sign 
any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 













 

 

No. 114-9 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
TITLE 
 
A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AND 
EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH THE STATE OF TENNESSEE, DEPARTMENT OF 
CHILDREN’S SERVICES (DCS) TO RECEIVE $45,000.00 FROM THE STATE 
SUPPLEMENT FUND TO BE USED FOR THE VOCATIONAL EDUCATION 
PROGRAM WITHIN THE DETENTION CENTER OF THE HAMILTON COUNTY 
JUVENILE COURT. 
 
WHEREAS, the State of Tennessee, Department of Children’s Services is making available 

to the Hamilton County Juvenile Court $45,000.00; and, 
 
WHEREAS, these funds will be used to provide vocational and educational services for the 

children of Hamilton County detained in the Hamilton County Juvenile Court 
Detention Center; and, 

 
WHEREAS, these funds have been included in the Juvenile Court Budget for the fiscal Year 

2014 - 2019; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, 
IN SESSION ASSEMBELD: 
 
That the County Mayor is hereby authorized to enter into and execute a contract with the State 
of Tennessee, Department of Children’s Services to receive $45,000.00 for providing services 
to children of the Hamilton County Juvenile Court. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 



 

 

No. 114-10 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF ADMAN ELECTRIC, INC. FOR THE 
JUVENILE COURT CHILD SUPPORT SERVICES FIRE ALARM AND SECURITY 
UPGRADES AMOUNTING TO $62,817.00 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 
MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for fire alarm and 

security upgrades for Juvenile Court Child Support Services; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Adman Electric, Inc. amounting to $62,817.00 was the only bid 

received, but said bid is deemed reasonable; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Adman Electric, Inc. for the Juvenile Court Child Support Services Fire Alarm 
and Security Upgrades amounting to $62,817.00 is hereby accepted, and authorizing the 
County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 









 

 

No. 114-11 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF BEAMAN AUTOMOTIVE GROUP FOR 
ONE (1) HEAVY DUTY CARGO VAN AMOUNTING TO $21,078.00 FOR THE 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 
MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) heavy duty 

cargo van for the Telecommunications Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Beaman Automotive Group amounting to $21,078.00 was 

considered to be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Beaman Automotive Group for one (1) heavy duty cargo van amounting to 
$21,078.00 for the Telecommunications Department is hereby accepted, said bid being the 
lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts 
necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 

















 

 

No. 114-13 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO RENEW THE AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF 
TENNESSEE ON BEHALF OF THE TENNESSEE BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION FOR HAMILTON COUNTY 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES AND HAMILTON COUNTY GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION 
SYSTEMS TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES IN SUPPORT AND DEVELOPMENT OF THE 
TENNESSEE METHAMPHETAMINE TASK FORCE (TMTF) INFORMATION SYSTEM NOT TO EXCEED 
$246,126. 
 
 
WHEREAS, methamphetamine is a major drug problem in this area as well as the rest of the 
   State of Tennessee; and 
  
WHEREAS, state wide efforts to deal with the methamphetamine problem requires an 
   effective data collection, management and utilization system; and 
 
WHEREAS, this system has been developed and maintained by Hamilton County Information Technology 
  Services and Hamilton County Geographic Information Systems; and, 
 
WHEREAS, in order not to interrupt the operation of the TMTF Information System within the State of 

Tennessee an agreement between Hamilton County and the State of Tennessee was executed 
during 2013; and 

 
WHEREAS, this agreement provides for this work to be done in a manner not to interfere with the work these 
  two Hamilton County departments do in support of Hamilton County; and 
  
WHEREAS, pursuant to this agreement the State of Tennessee will repay Hamilton County for all cost 
   incurred in the continued development, support and management of the TMTF Information 
  System in an amount not to exceed  $246,126; and 
 
WHEREAS, since the cost of continued support and management of the TMTF Information System is not 

budgeted and will not require any unreimbursed County support, it is necessary to increase the 
general fund revenue and expense budgets by $246,126: and 

 
WHEREAS, this county legislative body deems Hamilton County’s participation in this work and 
   in the funding of the TMTF to be vital and in the best interest of its citizens. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION  
ASSEMBLED THAT: 
 

The County Mayor is hereby authorized to renew the agreement with the State of Tennessee on behalf of the 
Tennessee Bureau of Investigation for Hamilton County Information Technology  Services and Hamilton County 
Geographic Information Systems to provide professional services in support and development of the TMTF Information 
System not to exceed $246,126 and that the general fund revenue and expense budgets are amended by the same 
amount. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE 
THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 



 

C O N T R AC T  
(fee-for-service contract with a federal or Tennessee local or quasi-governmental entity) 

Begin Date End Date Agency Tracking # Edison Record ID 

                 -            
Contractor Legal Entity Name Edison Vendor ID 

            
Subrecipient or Vendor CFDA # 

 Subrecipient    Vendor       
Service Caption (one line only) 

      

Funding — 
FY State Federal Interdepartmental Other TOTAL Contract Amount 

                                   

                                   

                                   

                                   

                                   

TOTAL:                               

American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) Funding:        YES     NO 

Budget Officer Confirmation:  There is a balance in the 
appropriation from which obligations hereunder are required to 
be paid that is not already encumbered to pay other 
obligations. 

OCR USE - GU 

Speed Chart (optional) Account Code (optional) 

            
 



CONTRACT 
BETWEEN THE STATE OF TENNESSEE, 

TENNESSEE BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 
AND 

HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE 
 
This Contract, by and between the State of Tennessee, Tennessee Bureau of Investigation, 
hereinafter referred to as the ‘State” and Hamilton County, Tennessee, hereinafter referred to as 
the “Contractor,” is for the provision of technological services and supplies for the Tennessee 
Methamphetamine and Pharmaceutical Task Force, as further defined in the "SCOPE OF 
SERVICES." 
 
Contractor Edison Registration ID # 4208 
 
A. SCOPE OF SERVICES: 
 
A.1. The Contractor shall provide all service and deliverables as required, described, and 

detailed herein and shall meet all service and delivery timelines as specified by this 
Contract. 

 
A.2. The Contractor will provide services of the Contractor’s Information Systems Support 

Staff for the development, implementation, and support of the Tennessee 
Methamphetamine Information System (TMIS) which is a crucial element to the operation 
of the Tennessee Methamphetamine and Pharmaceutical Task Force (TMPTF).  The 
individuals that will provide support have an intimate knowledge of the system.  To 
enable the continued success of the computer system, the Contractor will continue to 
enhance the methamphetamine web-based computer system that has been created. 

A.3. The Contractor shall provide the following computer hardware and software necessary to 
operate and maintain the TMIS:  one SAN module to support Virtualization environment, 
five operating system licenses for new server installations, one Network switch to support 
server environment, one redundant intrusion prevention/detection systems, and one log 
monitoring and auditing software/hardware. 

A.4. The Contractor shall provide all repair parts and additional equipment and licenses 
required to complete this contract.  The Contractor shall provide operational equipment 
and supplies for use on TMIS. 

B. CONTRACT PERIOD: 
 
B.1 This Contract shall be effective for the period beginning January 1, 2014, and ending on 

December 31, 2014.  The Contractor hereby acknowledges and affirms that the State 
shall have no obligation for services rendered by the Contractor which were not 
performed within this specified contract period. 

 
B.2. Term Extension.  The State reserves the right to extend this Contract for an additional 

period or periods of time representing increments of no more than one year and a total 
contract term of no more than five (5) years, provided that such an extension of the 
contract term is effected prior to the current, contract expiration date by means of a 
contract amendment.  If a term extension necessitates additional funding beyond that 
which was included in the original Contract, an increase of the State’s maximum liability 
will also be effected through contract amendment, and shall be based upon payment 
rates provided in the original Contract. 

 
 



C. PAYMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS:   
 
C.1. Maximum Liability.  In no event shall the maximum liability of the State under this 

Contract exceed ONE HUNDRED SIXTY-O0NE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED FIFTEEN 
DOLLARS ($161,515).  The payment rates in Section C.3 and the Travel Compensation 
provided in Section C.4.shall constitute the entire compensation due the Contractor for 
the Service and all of the Contractor's obligations hereunder regardless of the difficulty, 
materials or equipment required.  The payment rates include, but are not limited to, all 
applicable taxes, fees, overheads, and all other direct and indirect costs incurred or to be 
incurred by the Contractor. 
 
The Contractor is not entitled to be paid the maximum liability for any period under the 
Contract or any extensions of the Contract for work not requested by the State.  The 
maximum liability represents available funds for payment to the Contractor and does not 
guarantee payment of any such funds to the Contractor under this Contract unless the 
State requests work and the Contractor performs said work.  In which case, the 
Contractor shall be paid in accordance with the payment rates detailed in section C.3.  
The State is under no obligation to request work from the Contractor in any specific dollar 
amounts or to request any work at all from the Contractor during any period of this 
Contract. 

 
C.2. Compensation Firm.  The payment rates and the maximum liability of the State under this 

Contract are firm for the duration of the Contract and are not subject to escalation for any 
reason unless amended. 

 
C.3. Payment Methodology.  The Contractor shall be compensated based on the payment 

rates herein for units of service authorized by the State in a total amount not to exceed 
the Contract Maximum Liability established in section C.1.   

 
a. The Contractor’s compensation shall be contingent upon the satisfactory 

completion of units, milestones, or increments of service defined in section A.   
 

b. The Contractor shall be compensated for said units, milestones, or increments of 
service based upon the following payment rates:  

 

  Service Description 
Amount (per compensable 

increment) 

SERVICES OF APPLICATION DEVELOPMENT MGR    $73.73 per hour 

SERVICES OF SYSTEM DATABASE ARCHITECT              $63.29 per hour 

SERVICES OF DATA CONTROL CLERK              $25.17 per hour 

SERVICES OF DATABASE ANALYST               $59.33 per hour 

SERVICES OF DIRECTOR OF IT                     $89.22 per hour 

SERVICES OF GIS ANALYST             $43.38 per hour 

SERVICES OF GIS MANAGER                    $59.10 per hour 

SERVICES OF GIS SPECIALIST                 $41.20 per hour 

SERVICES OF GIS SPECIALIST                 $41.42 per hour 

SERVICES OF GIS SPECIALIST                 $41.56 per hour 

SERVICES OF GIS SYSTEM PROGRAMMER                 $44.13 per hour 



SERVICES OF GIS TECHNICIAN                 $32.51 per hour 

SERVICES OF GIS TECHNICIAN                 $32.68 per hour 

SERVICES OF GIS TECHNICIAN                 $32.03 per hour 

SERVICES OF GIS TECHNICIAN                 $33.45 per hour 

SERVICES OF HELP DESK TECHNICIAN           $32.10 per hour 

SERVICES OF ITS INVENTORY CONTROL SPCLIST $30.48 per hour 

SERVICES OF ITS OPERATIONS MANAGER         $62.37 per hour 

SERVICES OF LEAD SYSTEMS PROGRAMMER        $63.92 per hour 

SERVICES OF MICROCOMPUTER SPECIALIST       $40.99 per hour 

SERVICES OF MICROCOMPUTER SPECIALIST       $41.51 per hour 

SERVICES OF MICROCOMPUTER SPECIALIST       $43.32 per hour 

SERVICES OF NETWORK MANAGER                $61.48 per hour 

SERVICES OF NETWORK SPECIALIST             $51.13 per hour 

SERVICES OF NETWORK SPECIALIST             $46.97 per hour 

SERVICES OF NETWORK SPECIALIST             $49.74 per hour 

SERVICES OF NETWORK SPECIALIST             $46.48 per hour 

SERVICES OF SR ACCOUNT CLERK               $28.00 per hour 

SERVICES OF PROGRAMMER                     $35.17 per hour 

SERVICES OF PROGRAMMER                     $35.17 per hour 

SERVICES OF PROGRAMMER                     $37.74 per hour 

SERVICES OF PROGRAMMER                     $37.61 per hour 

SERVICES OF PROGRAMMER                     $38.87 per hour 

SERVICES OF PROGRAMMER                     $43.80 per hour 

SERVICES OF SR ACCOUNT CLERK               $28.00 per hour 

SERVICES OF SR PROGRAMMER ANALYST          $45.52 per hour 

SERVICES OF SR PROGRAMMER ANALYST          $50.58 per hour 

SERVICES OF SR PROGRAMMER ANALYST          $50.58 per hour 

SERVICES OF SR SECRETARY                   $27.63 per hour 

SERVICES OF SYSTEMS ANALYST                $58.68 per hour 

SERVICES OF SYSTEMS ANALYST SUPERVISOR            $60.84 per hour 

SERVICES OF SYSTEMS ANALYST SUPERVISOR                $63.29 per hour 

SERVICES OF STSTEMS DATABASE ARCHITECT     $63.29 per hour 

SERVICES OF SYSTEMS PROGRAMMER             $53.71 per hour 

SERVICES OF WEBMASTER                      $42.94 per hour 

Maintenance – Fusion/GIS System/TMIS System   $60,000.00 maximum   



Computer Software/Equipment – Maintenance – GIS System $48,860.00 maximum 
Computer Software/Equipment – Interstate PSE/Pharmacy 
Exchange   

          $35,000.00 maximum 

  
c. The Contractor shall not be compensated for travel time to the primary location of 
service provision. 

  
C.4. Travel Compensation.  Compensation to the Contractor for travel, meals, or lodging shall 

be subject to amounts and limitations specified in the “State Comprehensive Travel 
Regulations,” as they are amended from time to time.   

 
The Contractor must include (in addition to other invoice requirements of this Contract) a 
complete itemization of travel compensation requested in accordance with and attaching 
to the invoice appropriate documentation and receipts as required by the above-
referenced "State Comprehensive Travel Regulations." 

 
C.5. Invoice Requirements. The Contractor shall invoice the State only for completed 

increments of service and for the amount stipulated in section C.3, above, and present 
said invoices no more often than monthly, with all necessary supporting documentation, 
to: 
 
Tennessee Bureau of Investigation 

 Attn: Fiscal Department 
 901 R.S. Gass Boulevard 
 Nashville, Tennessee 37216 

 
a. Each invoice shall clearly and accurately detail all of the following required 

information (calculations must be extended and totaled correctly). 
 

(1) Invoice Number (assigned by the Contractor) 
(2) Invoice Date 
(3) Contract Number (assigned by the State) 
(4) Customer Account Name:  Tennessee Bureau of Investigation, Drug 

Division 
(5) Customer Account Number (assigned by the Contractor to the above-

referenced Customer) 
(6) Contractor Name 
(7) Contractor Tennessee Edison Registration ID Number Referenced in 

Preamble of this Contract 
(8) Contractor Contact for Invoice Questions (name, phone, and/or fax) 
(9) Contractor Remittance Address 
(10) Description of Delivered Service  
(11) Complete Itemization of Charges, which shall detail the following:  
 

i. Service or Milestone Description (including name & title as 
applicable) of each service invoiced 

ii. Number of Completed Units, Increments, Hours, or Days as 
applicable, of each service invoiced 

iii. Applicable Payment Rate (as stipulated in Section C.3.) of each 
service invoiced 

iv. Amount Due by Service 
v. Total Amount Due for the invoice period 

 
b. The Contractor understands and agrees that an invoice under this Contract shall: 
 



(1) include only charges for service described in Contract Section A and in 
accordance with payment terms and conditions set forth in Contract 
Section C;  

(2) only be submitted for completed service and shall not include any charge 
for future work; 

(3) not include sales tax or shipping charges; and 
(4) initiate the timeframe for payment (and any discounts) only when the 

State is in receipt of the invoice, and the invoice meets the minimum 
requirements of this section C.5. 

 
C.6. Payment of Invoice.  A payment by the State shall not prejudice the State's right to object 

to or question any payment, invoice, or matter in relation thereto.  A payment by the State 
shall not be construed as acceptance of any part of the work or service provided or as 
approval of any amount invoiced.   

 
C.7. Invoice Reductions.  The Contractor's invoice shall be subject to reduction for amounts 

included in any invoice or payment theretofore made which are determined by the State, 
on the basis of audits conducted in accordance with the terms of this Contract, not to 
constitute proper remuneration for compensable services.   

 
C.8. Deductions.  The State reserves the right to deduct from amounts, which are or shall 

become due and payable to the Contractor under this or any contract between the 
Contractor and the State of Tennessee any amounts, which are or shall become due and 
payable to the State of Tennessee by the Contractor. 

 
C.9. Prerequisite Documentation.  The Contractor shall not invoice the State under this 

Contract until the State has received the following documentation properly completed.   
 

a. The Contractor shall complete, sign, and present to the State an "Authorization 
Agreement for Automatic Deposit (ACH Credits) Form" provided by the State.  By 
doing so, the Contractor acknowledges and agrees that, once said form is 
received by the State, all payments to the Contractor, under this or any other 
contract the Contractor has with the State of Tennessee shall be made by 
Automated Clearing House (ACH). 

 
b. The Contractor shall complete, sign, and present to the State a "Substitute W-9 

Form” provided by the State.  The taxpayer identification number detailed by said 
form must agree with the Contractor's Federal Employer Identification Number or 
Tennessee Edison Registration ID referenced in this Contract.   

 
D. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 
D.1. Required Approvals.  The State is not bound by this Contract until it is signed by the 

contract parties and approved by appropriate officials in accordance with applicable 
Tennessee laws and regulations (depending upon the specifics of this contract, said 
officials may include, but are not limited to, the Commissioner of Finance and 
Administration, the Commissioner of Human Resources, and the Comptroller of the 
Treasury). 

 
D.2. Modification and Amendment.  This Contract may be modified only by a written 

amendment signed by all parties hereto and approved by both the officials who approved 
the base contract and, depending upon the specifics of the contract as amended, any 
additional officials required by Tennessee laws and regulations (said officials may 
include, but are not limited to, the Commissioner of Finance and Administration, the 
Commissioner of Human Resources, and the Comptroller of the Treasury). 

 



D.3. Termination for Convenience.  The State may terminate this Contract without cause for 
any reason.  Said termination shall not be deemed a breach of contract by the State.  The 
State shall give the Contractor at least thirty (30) days written notice before the effective 
termination date.  The Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for satisfactory, 
authorized service completed as of the termination date, but in no event shall the State 
be liable to the Contractor for compensation for any service which has not been 
rendered.   Upon such termination, the Contractor shall have no right to any actual 
general, special, incidental, consequential, or any other damages whatsoever of any 
description or amount. 

 
D.4. Termination for Cause.  If the Contractor fails to properly perform its obligations under 

this Contract in a timely or proper manner, or if the Contractor violates any terms of this 
Contract, the State shall have the right to immediately terminate the Contract and 
withhold payments in excess of fair compensation for completed services.  
Notwithstanding the above, the Contractor shall not be relieved of liability to the State for 
damages sustained by virtue of any breach of this Contract by the Contractor. 

 
D.5. Subcontracting.  The Contractor shall not assign this Contract or enter into a subcontract 

for any of the services performed under this Contract without obtaining the prior written 
approval of the State.  If such subcontracts are approved by the State, each shall contain, 
at a minimum, sections of this Contract below pertaining to "Conflicts of Interest," 
"Nondiscrimination," and “Records” (as identified by the section headings).  
Notwithstanding any use of approved subcontractors, the Contractor shall be the prime 
contractor and shall be responsible for all work performed. 

 
D.6. Conflicts of Interest.  The Contractor warrants that no part of the total Contract Amount 

shall be paid directly or indirectly to an employee or official of the State of Tennessee as 
wages, compensation, or gifts in exchange for acting as an officer, agent, employee, 
subcontractor, or consultant to the Contractor in connection with any work contemplated 
or performed relative to this Contract.  

 
D.7. Nondiscrimination.  The Contractor hereby agrees, warrants, and assures that no person 

shall be excluded from participation in, be denied benefits of, or be otherwise subjected 
to discrimination in the performance of this Contract or in the employment practices of the 
Contractor on the grounds of handicap or disability, age, race, color, religion, sex, 
national origin, or any other classification protected by Federal, Tennessee State 
constitutional, or statutory law.  The Contractor shall, upon request, show proof of such 
nondiscrimination and shall post in conspicuous places, available to all employees and 
applicants, notices of nondiscrimination. 

 
D.8. Records.  The Contractor shall maintain documentation for all charges under this 

Contract.  The books, records, and documents of the Contractor, insofar as they relate to 
work performed or money received under this Contract, shall be maintained for a period 
of three (3) full years from the date of the final payment and shall be subject to audit at 
any reasonable time and upon reasonable notice by the State, the Comptroller of the 
Treasury, or their duly appointed representatives.  The financial statements shall be 
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

 
D.9. Prevailing Wage Rates.  All contracts for construction, erection, or demolition or to install 

goods or materials that involve the expenditure of any funds derived from the State 
require compliance with the prevailing wage laws as provided in Tennessee Code 
Annotated, Section 12-4-401 et seq.. 

 
D.10. Monitoring.  The Contractor’s activities conducted and records maintained pursuant to 

this Contract shall be subject to monitoring and evaluation by the State, the Comptroller 
of the Treasury, or their duly appointed representatives. 



 
D.11. Progress Reports.  The Contractor shall submit brief, periodic, progress reports to the 

State as requested. 
 
D.12. Strict Performance.  Failure by any party to this Contract to insist in any one or more 

cases upon the strict performance of any of the terms, covenants, conditions, or 
provisions of this Contract shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any 
such term, covenant, condition, or provision.  No term or condition of this Contract shall 
be held to be waived, modified, or deleted except by a written amendment signed by the 
parties hereto. 

 
D.13. Independent Contractor.  The parties hereto, in the performance of this Contract, shall 

not act as employees, partners, joint venturers, or associates of one another.  It is 
expressly acknowledged by the parties hereto that such parties are independent 
contracting entities and that nothing in this Contract shall be construed to create a 
employer/employee relationship or to allow either to exercise control or direction over the 
manner or method by which the other transacts its business affairs or provides its usual 
services.  The employees or agents of one party shall not be deemed or construed to be 
the employees or agents of the other party for any purpose whatsoever. 
 
The Contractor, being a Tennessee governmental entity, is governed by the provisions of 
the Tennessee Government Tort Liability Act, Tennessee Code Annotated, Sections 29-
20-101 et seq., for causes of action sounding in tort.  Further, no contract provision 
requiring a Tennessee political entity to indemnify or hold harmless the State beyond the 
liability imposed by law is enforceable because it appropriates public money and nullifies 
governmental immunity without the authorization of the General Assembly. 

 
D.14. State Liability.  The State shall have no liability except as specifically provided in this 

Contract. 
 
D.15. Force Majeure.  The obligations of the parties to this Contract are subject to prevention 

by causes beyond the parties’ control that could not be avoided by the exercise of due 
care including, but not limited to, natural disasters, riots, wars, epidemics, or any other 
similar cause. 

 
D.16. State and Federal Compliance.  The Contractor shall comply with all applicable State and 

Federal laws and regulations in the performance of this Contract. 
 
D.17. Governing Law.  This Contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 

the laws of the State of Tennessee.  The Contractor agrees that it will be subject to the 
exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the State of Tennessee in actions that may arise 
under this Contract.  The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that any rights or claims 
against the State of Tennessee or its employees hereunder, and any remedies arising 
therefrom, shall be subject to and limited to those rights and remedies, if any, available 
under Tennessee Code Annotated, Sections 9-8-101 through 9-8-407. 

 
D.18. Completeness.  This Contract is complete and contains the entire understanding between 

the parties relating to the subject matter contained herein, including all the terms and 
conditions of the parties’ agreement.  This Contract supersedes any and all prior 
understandings, representations, negotiations, and agreements between the parties 
relating hereto, whether written or oral. 

 
D.19. Severability.  If any terms and conditions of this Contract are held to be invalid or 

unenforceable as a matter of law, the other terms and conditions hereof shall not be 
affected thereby and shall remain in full force and effect.  To this end, the terms and 
conditions of this Contract are declared severable. 



 
D.20. Headings.  Section headings of this Contract are for reference purposes only and shall 

not be construed as part of this Contract. 
 
E. SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 
E.1. Conflicting Terms and Conditions.  Should any of these special terms and conditions 

conflict with any other terms and conditions of this Contract, these special terms and 
conditions shall control.  

 
E.2. Communications and Contacts.  All instructions, notices, consents, demands, or other 

communications required or contemplated by this Contract shall be in writing and shall be 
made by certified, first class mail, return receipt requested and postage prepaid, by 
overnight courier service with an asset tracking system, or by EMAIL or facsimile 
transmission with recipient confirmation.  Any such communications, regardless of 
method of transmission, shall be addressed to the respective party at the appropriate 
mailing address, facsimile number, or EMAIL address as set forth below or to that of such 
other party or address, as may be hereafter specified by written notice. 
 
The State: 
 
Tommy Farmer, ASAC  

 Tennessee Bureau of Investigation 
540 McCallie Avenue, Suite 411 

 Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402 
 Thomas.farmer@tn.gov 
 Telephone #  423-752-1479 

FAX #  423-267-8983 
 
The Contractor: 
 
Jim Coppinger, Hamilton County Mayor 
Hamilton County, Tennessee 
208 Courthouse 

 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
Telephone #  423-209-6100 
FAX #  423-209-6101 
 
All instructions, notices, consents, demands, or other communications shall be 
considered effectively given upon receipt or recipient confirmation as may be required. 

 
E.3. Subject to Funds Availability.  The Contract is subject to the appropriation and availability 

of State and/or Federal funds.  In the event that the funds are not appropriated or are 
otherwise unavailable, the State reserves the right to terminate the Contract upon written 
notice to the Contractor.  Said termination shall not be deemed a breach of Contract by 
the State.  Upon receipt of the written notice, the Contractor shall cease all work 
associated with the Contract.  Should such an event occur, the Contractor shall be 
entitled to compensation for all satisfactory and authorized services completed as of the 
termination date.  Upon such termination, the Contractor shall have no right to recover 
from the State any actual, general, special, incidental, consequential, or any other 
damages whatsoever of any description or amount. 
 

E.4. Confidentiality of Records. Strict standards of confidentiality of records and information 
shall be maintained in accordance with applicable state and federal law.  All material and 
information, regardless of form, medium or method of communication, provided to the 
Contractor by the State or acquired by the Contractor on behalf of the State shall be 



regarded as confidential information in accordance with the provisions of applicable state 
and federal law, state and federal rules and regulations, departmental policy, and ethical 
standards.  Such confidential information shall not be disclosed, and all necessary steps 
shall be taken by the Contractor to safeguard the confidentiality of such material or 
information in conformance with applicable state and federal law, state and federal rules 
and regulations, departmental policy, and ethical standards. 
 
The Contractor’s obligations under this section do not apply to information in the public 
domain; entering the public domain but not from a breach by the Contractor of this 
Contract; previously possessed by the Contractor without written obligations to the State 
to protect it; acquired by the Contractor without written restrictions against disclosure 
from a third party which, to the Contractor’s knowledge, is free to disclose the 
information; independently developed by the Contractor without the use of the State’s 
information; or, disclosed by the State to others without restrictions against disclosure. 
Nothing in this paragraph shall permit Contractor to disclose any information that is 
confidential under federal or state law or regulations, regardless of whether it has been 
disclosed or made available to the Contractor due to intentional or negligent actions or 
inactions of agents of the State or third parties. 
 
It is expressly understood and agreed the obligations set forth in this section shall survive 
the termination of this Contract. 

 
E.5. State Furnished Property.  The Contractor shall be responsible for the correct use, 

maintenance, and protection of all articles of nonexpendable, tangible, personal property 
furnished by the State for the Contractor’s temporary use under this Contract.  Upon 
termination of this Contract, all property furnished shall be returned to the State in good 
order and condition as when received, reasonable use and wear thereof excepted.  
Should the property be destroyed, lost, or stolen, the Contractor shall be responsible to 
the State for the residual value of the property at the time of loss. 

 
E.6. Debarment and Suspension.  The Contractor certifies, to the best of its knowledge and 

belief, that it, its current and future principals, its current and future subcontractors and 
their principals: 

 
a. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any federal or 
state department or agency; 

 
b. have not within a three (3) year period preceding this Contract been convicted of, 

or had a civil judgment rendered against them from commission of fraud, or a 
criminal offence in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing 
a public (federal, state, or local) transaction or grant under a public transaction; 
violation of federal or state antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, 
theft, forgery, bribery, falsification, or destruction of records, making false 
statements, or receiving stolen property; 

 
c. are not presently indicted or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 

government entity (federal, state, or local) with commission of any of the offenses 
detailed in section b. of this certification;  and 

 
d. have not within a three (3) year period preceding this Contract had one or more 

public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 
 

 The Contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the State if at any time it learns  
that there was an earlier failure to disclose information or that due to changed 



circumstances, its principals or the principals of its subcontractors are excluded or 
disqualified. 

 
E.7. Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA).  This Contract requires 

the Contractor to provide supplies and/or services that are funded in whole or in part by 
federal funds that are subject to FFATA. The Contractor is responsible for ensuring that 
all applicable requirements, including but not limited to those set forth herein, of FFATA 
are met and that the Contractor provides information to the State as required.   

 
The Contractor shall comply with the following: 

 
a. Reporting of Total Compensation of the Contractor’s Executives.  

 
(1) The Contractor shall report the names and total compensation of each of 

its five most highly compensated executives for the Contractor’s 
preceding completed fiscal year, if in the Contractor’s preceding fiscal 
year it received: 
 
i. 80 percent or more of the Contractor’s annual gross revenues 

from Federal procurement contracts and Federal financial 
assistance subject to the Transparency Act, as defined at 2 CFR 
170.320 (and subawards); and  

ii. $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues from Federal 
procurement contracts (and subcontracts), and Federal financial 
assistance subject to the Transparency Act (and subawards); 
and 

iii. The public does not have access to information about the 
compensation of the executives through periodic reports filed 
under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986. (To determine if the public has access to 
the compensation information, see the U.S. Security and 
Exchange Commission total compensation filings at 
http://www.sec.gov/answers/execomp.htm.). 

 
Executive means officers, managing partners, or any other employees in 
management positions. 
 

(2) Total compensation means the cash and noncash dollar value earned by 
the executive during the Contractor’s preceding fiscal year and includes 
the following (for more information see 17 CFR 229.402(c)(2)):  

 
i. Salary and bonus.  
ii. Awards of stock, stock options, and stock appreciation rights. 

Use the dollar amount recognized for financial statement 
reporting purposes with respect to the fiscal year in accordance 
with the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 
(Revised 2004) (FAS 123R), Shared Based Payments.  

iii. Earnings for services under non-equity incentive plans. This 
does not include group life, health, hospitalization or medical 
reimbursement plans that do not discriminate in favor of 
executives, and are available generally to all salaried employees.  

iv. Change in pension value. This is the change in present value of 
defined benefit and actuarial pension plans.  

v. Above-market earnings on deferred compensation which is not 
tax qualified.  



vi. Other compensation, if the aggregate value of all such other 
compensation (e.g. severance, termination payments, value of 
life insurance paid on behalf of the employee, perquisites or 
property) for the executive exceeds $10,000. 

 
b. The Contractor must report executive total compensation described above to the 

State by the end of the month during which this Contract is awarded.   
 
c. If this Contract is amended to extend its term, the Contractor must submit an 

executive total compensation report to the State by the end of the month in which 
the amendment to this Contract becomes effective. 

 
d. The Contractor will obtain a Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number 

and maintain its DUNS number for the term of this Contract.  More information 
about obtaining a DUNS Number can be found at:  
http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform/ 

 
 The Contractor’s failure to comply with the above requirements is a material breach of 

this Contract for which the State may terminate this Contract for cause.  The State will not 
be obligated to pay any outstanding invoice received from the Contractor unless and until 
the Contractor is in full compliance with the above requirements. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 

HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE: 

 

CONTRACTOR SIGNATURE DATE 

 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF CONTRACTOR SIGNATORY (above)  

TENNESSEE BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION: 

 

MARK GWYN, DIRECTOR DATE 
 

http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform/


 

 

No. 114-14 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE 
PERIOD OF NOVEMBER 1, 2013, THROUGH NOVEMBER 30, 2013, AND TO AUTHORIZE 
THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department was authorized to make purchases of petroleum products 

on the open market; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the following purchases were made between November 1, 2013, through November 

30, 2013.  
 
 November 4, 2013, $19,734.52 for 7,961 gallons of E-10 gasoline at 2.4789 per gallon 

from Sweetwater Valley Oil Company.  
 
 November 6, 2013, $22,094.23 for 7,485 gallons of diesel fuel at 2.951801 per gallon 

from Pilot Travel Centers, LLC. 
 
 November 6, 2013, $1,623.76 for 595 gallons of regular unleaded at 2.7290 per gallon 

from Jat Oil & Supply, Inc. 
 
 November 7, 2013, $22,120.79 for 7,494 gallons of diesel fuel at 2.9518 per gallon 

from Pilot Travel Centers, LLC. 
  
 November 11, 2013, $20,400.56 for 7,946 gallons of E-10 gasoline at 2.5674 per 

gallon from Sweetwater Valley Oil Company, Inc. 
 
 November 12, 2013, $2,899.00 for 1,000 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 

2.8990 per gallon from Jat Oil & Supply, Inc. 
 
 November 12, 2013, $1,263.97 for 436 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 2.8990 

per gallon from Sweetwater Valley Oil Company, Inc. 
 
  
  



 

 

 

 

 
 
 November 13, 2013, $20,543.00 for 8,040 gallons of E-10 gasoline at 2.5551 per 

gallon from Sweetwater Valley Oil Company. 
 
November 25, 2013, $22,704.53 for 8,475 gallons of E-10 gasoline at 2.6790 per 
gallon from Jat Oil & Supply, Inc. 
 
November 26, 2013, $22,396.99 for 7,348 gallons of diesel fuel at 3.048039 per gallon 
from Parman Lubricants. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That the above purchases be ratified in the best interest of Hamilton County, and the County Mayor is 
authorized to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 







 

 

No. 114-15 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT 
WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF MILITARY OF THE TENNESSEE EMERGENCY 
MANAGEMENT AGENCY FOR A 2013 HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT WITH A 
PERIOD OF 09/01/2013 THROUGH 04/30/2015 AND AMENDING THE BUDGET OF 
THE EMERGENCY SERVICES DEPARTMENT BY ADDING $148,563.35 TO 
REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES.                                                
 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County is receiving a $148,563.35 Federal Homeland Security grant 
through the State Department of Military: and, 
 
WHEREAS, the grant will serve emergency responders in the City of Chattanooga, Hamilton 
County and Homeland Security District 3: and,  
 
WHEREAS, no match is required; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the grant will fund equipment, training and supplies that will improve the 
ability of emergency responders to deal with acts of terrorism and catastrophic events; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
The County Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a contract and any subsequent amendments 
with the Tennessee Department of Military for a 2013 Homeland Security grant with a period 
09/01/2013 through 04/30/2015, and the budget of the Emergency Services Department is 
amended by adding $148,563.35 to Revenues and Expenditures 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.     

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 



 

 

No. 114-16 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, 
TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON 
COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT TO ACCEPT AN  AWARD FROM THE HEALTH RESOURCES AND 
SERVICES ADMINISTRATION (HRSA) IN THE AMOUNT OF $50,760 FOR THE PROVISION OF 
OUTREACH AND ENROLLMENT ACTIVITIES FOR THE TIME PERIOD NOVEMBER 1, 2013 TO 
OCTOBER 31, 2014 AND INCREASE THE REVENUE AND EXPENSE BUDGETS BY $50,760. 
 
WHEREAS,  the Affordable Care Act has provided alternative insurance plans for those eligible; 

and  
 
WHEREAS,  outreach and enrollment assistance around the new health insurance plans; targeted to 

the eligible populations is necessary; and 
 
WHEREAS, HRSA has identified Community Health Centers as an effective provider of this 

assistance; and 
 
WHEREAS, HRSA has identified $50,760 for this effort; specifically to serve those in Hamilton 

County who are homeless or imminently homeless; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the Homeless Health Care Center staff will collaborate with the Tennessee Primary 

Care Association and other health centers within the service area to ensure that 
outreach efforts are comprehensively addressed for this population. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 That the County Mayor be authorized to accept an award in the amount of     

$50,760 from HRSA for the time period November 1, 2013 through October 31, 2014 
and increase the revenue and expense budgets by $50,760. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 









 

 

No. 114-17 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF TRI-CON, INC. FOR CONSTRUCTION OF 
THE EAST BRAINERD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL AMOUNTING TO $23,142,000.00 
AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 
NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for construction of the 

East Brainerd Elementary School; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Tri-Con, Inc. amounting to $23,142,000.00 was considered to be 

the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Tri-Con, Inc. for construction of the East Brainerd Elementary School 
amounting to $23,142,000.00 is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid 
received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 









 

 

No. 114-18 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF BEAMAN AUTOMOTIVE GROUP FOR 
ONE (1) 4X4 PICKUP TRUCK AMOUNTING TO $22,218.00 FOR THE BUILDING 
INSPECTION DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 
ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) 4X4 

pickup truck for the Building Inspection Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Beaman Automotive Group amounting to $22,218.00 was 

considered to be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Beaman Automotive Group for one (1) 4X4 pickup truck amounting to 
$22,218.00 for the Building Inspection Department is hereby accepted, said bid being the 
lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts 
necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 















 

 

No. 114-19 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE "MASTER LIST OF ROADS AND SPEED LIMITS" 
SO AS TO ACCEPT THE FOLLOWING DISTRICT ROAD AND TO ESTABLISH A 
SPEED LIMIT THEREFOR: Kennerly Court as extended. 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution No. 0109-14, dated January 7, 2009, shows the mileage of Kennerly 

Court as being 0.25 miles being described as leading from Skybrook Drive 
west to a temporary turnaround; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the new extension of Kennerly Court was constructed, leading from the 

existing Kennerly Court south 0.09 miles to a turnaround, being in the 2nd Civil 
District, the 9th   County Commission District in the Providence Point 
Subdivision, on State Tax Map Number 104, has a 50’ right-of-way, a 8" stone 
base, a 2" plant mix pavement with concrete curbs and was built by Brown 
Brothers Construction and Spears Hopkins Paving Co. for the Developer, 
James A. Frost; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Kennerly Court leads from Skybrook Drive west 0.34 miles to a turnaround; 

and,  
 
WHEREAS,  the above named road has been inspected by the Hamilton County Division of 

Public Works and meets current County Subdivision Regulations. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
 1. That the above named road be declared a district road, 2nd class. 
 
 2. That the speed limit on said road shall be 25 M.P.H., and that violation of the 

same, when posted, shall be a misdemeanor and punishable as such as provided by 
the laws of this State.  

 
 3. That the "Master List of Roads and Speed Limits" is hereby amended. 
 



 

 

 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 



 

 

No. 114-20 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE "MASTER LIST OF ROADS AND SPEED 
LIMITS" SO AS TO ACCEPT THE FOLLOWING DISTRICT ROAD AND TO 
ESTABLISH A SPEED LIMIT THEREFORE: Maple Grove Lane. 
 
WHEREAS, Maple Grove Lane is in the 2nd Civil District, the 9th County Commission 

District, in Maple Grove Subdivision, on State Tax Map Number 173, has a 
50’ right-of-way, a 8" stone base, a 2" plant mix pavement with concrete 
curbs and was built by Barry Higgins Construction and Card Paving Inc. for 
the developer Terry Wall; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Maple Grove Lane leads from East Brainerd Road east 0.17 miles to a 

turnaround; and,  
 
WHEREAS,  the above named road has been inspected by the Hamilton County Division 

of Public Works and meets current County Subdivision Regulations. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
 1. That the above named road be declared a district road, 2nd class. 
 
 2. That the speed limit on said road shall be 25 M.P.H., and that violation of the 

same, when posted, shall be a misdemeanor and punishable as such as provided 
by the laws of this State.  

 
 3. That the "Master List of Roads and Speed Limits" is hereby amended. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 



 

 

No. 114-21 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF HELTON CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, 
INC. FOR CONSTRUCTION OF THE HAMILTON COUNTY EMERGENCY VEHICLE 
STORAGE BUILDING AMOUNTING TO $585,700.00 AND AUTHORIZING THE 
COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS,  bids were received in response to public advertisement for construction of the 

Hamilton County Emergency Vehicle Storage Building; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Helton Construction Company, Inc. amounting to $585,700.00 

was the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Helton Construction Company, Inc for construction of the Hamilton County 
Emergency Vehicle Storage Building amounting to $585,700.00 is hereby accepted; said bid 
being the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any 
contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 











 

 

No. 114-22 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

 A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AND 
EXECUTE A GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN NORFOLK SOUTHERN 
RAILWAY COMPANY (NS) AND HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, SAID 
LEASE COMMENCING JANUARY 1, 2014 AND TERMINATING DECEMBER 31, 
2044. 
   
WHEREAS,     Hamilton County (County) and a number of local public and private 

partners are working together to extend the Tennessee Riverwalk from 
Ross’s Landing to St. Elmo; and; 

 
WHEREAS, NS owns certain property located along the Tennessee River needed to 

facilitate the construction and extension of said Tennessee Riverwalk; and;  
 

WHEREAS, NS has agreed to lease a portion of its property to the County for the 
Tennessee Riverwalk use at an annual rate of $4,200.00 for a term of 30 
years, commencing January 1, 2014 and terminating December 31, 2044; 
and; 

 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the citizens of Hamilton County to enter into said 

agreement to facilitate the construction and further extension of the 
Tennessee Riverwalk.  

 
   NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 

IN SESSION     ASSEMBLED: 
 

That the County Mayor is authorized to enter into and execute a ground 
lease agreement between Norfolk Southern Railway Company (NS) and 
Hamilton County, Tennessee, commencing January 1, 2014 and 
terminating December 31, 2044, at a rate of $4,200.00 annually for a term 
of 30 years, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the attached or 
similar lease agreement. 



 

 

 

 

  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 























 

 

No. 114-23 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE 
TWO (2) LICENSE AGREEMENTS AND PAY FEES TO NORFOLK SOUTHERN RAILWAY 
COMPANY (NS) FOR THE LICENSE TO ENTER UPON AND MAKE MODIFICATIONS TO 
RIGHT-OF-WAY AND/OR APPURTENANCES RENDERED NECESSARY ON PROPERTY 
OWNED OR CONTROLLED BY NS REQUIRED FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE NEW 
TENNESSEE RIVERPARK DOWNTOWN SEGMENT PHASE 1 AND 2, FOR AN AMOUNT NOT 
TO EXCEED $515,638.00, SAID AGREEMENTS COMMENCING ON JANUARY 1, 2014 AND 
TERMINATING DECEMBER 31, 2044. 

    
WHEREAS, Hamilton County is engaged in designing the Tennessee RiverPark 

Downtown Segment Phase 1 and 2; and 
 
WHEREAS, various utility crossings are required at crossings of NS tracks and/or 

right of ways; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the license agreements require payment to NS for fees to make 

modifications to the right-of-way and/or appurtenances as necessary in 
the amount of $515,638.00 for a term of thirty (30) years, commencing 
on January 1, 2014 and terminating on December 31, 2044; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the NS license fee shall not exceed $515,638.00 without approval by the 

County Commission; and, 
 
WHEREAS, cost associated with the improvements will be paid for by a grant 

from the Tennessee Department of Transportation (TDOT) and/or 
private funds. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

That the County Mayor is authorized to enter into and execute the 
attached or similar license agreements with Norfolk Southern Railway 
Company (NS) to obtain license to make modifications to right-of-way 
and/or appurtenances as necessary for construction of the new 
Tennessee RiverPark Downtown Segment Phase 1 and 2 for an 
amount not to exceed $515,638.00 for a term of thirty (30) years. 



 

 

 

 

  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 





































































































































































 

 

No. 114-24 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT FOR TWO (2) EASEMENTS IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $167,175.00 REQUIRED FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE TENNESSEE RIVERWALK 
DOWNTOWN SEGMENT PHASE 1 AND 2, AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 
SIGN ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

    
 

WHEREAS, Hamilton County and a number of local public and private partners 
are working together to extend the Tennessee Riverwalk from Ross’s 
Landing to St. Elmo; and; 

 
WHEREAS, in order to facilitate further extension of the Tennessee Riverwalk 

payment to PSC Metals Inc. for two (2) easements totaling $167,175.00 
is required; and;  

 
WHEREAS, 80% of the funding cost will be paid by the Federal Highway 

Administration (FHWA) and the remaining 20% will be paid with 
private funds; and; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 

 
That authorization of payment for two (2) easements necessary for construction of the 
Tennessee Riverwalk Downtown Segment Phase 1 and 2 totaling $167,175.00 is approved, 
and the County Mayor is authorized to execute the  attached or similar easements. 
  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 



















































 

 

No. 114-25 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE ACCEPTANCE OF AN EASEMENT 
FROM THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA ALLOWING HAMILTON 
COUNTY TO CONSTRUCT THE TENNESSEE RIVERWALK 
DOWNTOWN SEGMENT PHASE 1 AND 2. 
 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County and the City of Chattanooga are presently 

working to complete the Tennessee Riverwalk Downtown 
Segment Phase 1 and 2; and,  

 
WHEREAS, City of Chattanooga has offered property along the Tennessee 

River on which to construct the project, to take effect upon 
execution of Easement. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY 
LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the County Mayor is authorized to execute the attached or similar 
Easement. 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT 
FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE 
REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 





















 

 

No. 114-26 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT TO CSX TRANSPORTATION, INC. FOR 
EASEMENTS IN THE AMOUNT OF $30,000.00 REQUIRED FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF 
THE TENNESSEE RIVERWALK DOWNTOWN SEGMENT PHASE 1 AND 2, AND 
AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO 
IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

    
WHEREAS, Hamilton County and a number of local public and private partners 

are working together to extend the Tennessee Riverwalk from Ross’s 
Landing to St. Elmo; and; 

 
WHEREAS, in order to facilitate further extension of the Tennessee Riverwalk, 

payment to CSX Transportation, Inc. for easements totaling 
$30,000.00 is required; and;  

 
WHEREAS, 80% of the funding cost will be paid by the Federal Highway 

Administration (FHWA) and the remaining 20% will be paid with 
private funds; and; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 

 
That authorization of payment to CSX Transportation, Inc. for easements necessary for 
construction of the Tennessee Riverwalk Downtown Segment Phase 1 and 2 totaling 
$30,000.00 is approved, and the County Mayor is authorized to execute the  attached or 
similar easement. 
  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 



































 

 

No. 114-27 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION (1) ESTABLISHING THE MINIMUM BID AMOUNT FOR CERTAIN 
PARCELS OF PROPERTY ACQUIRED BY HAMILTON COUNTY THROUGH 
PREVIOUS DELINQUENT TAX SALES, (2) AUTHORIZING THE OFFER OF SAID 
PARCELS FOR SALE AT THAT MINIMUM BID AMOUNT, AND (3) AUTHORIZING 
CERTAIN SAID PARCELS TO BE OFFERED FOR SALE FOR AN AMOUNT LESS 
THAN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF TAXES, PENALTY, COST, AND INTEREST 
ACCUMULATED AGAINST THE PROPERTY. 
 
WHEREAS, on September 15, 1982, the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners adopted 

Resolution No. 982-28 creating the Delinquent Tax Property Disposition 
Special Committee to aid in the disposition of property acquired by Hamilton 
County through delinquent tax sales; and, 

 
WHEREAS, said Special Committee along with the County Mayor has placed a fair price on 

each parcel of such property as required by Tennessee Code Annotated, Section 
67-5-2507; and, 

 
WHEREAS, provided that it appears impossible to sell any tract of said property for the total 

amount of taxes, penalty, cost, and interest accumulated against the property, 
pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated, Section 67-5-2507, upon application, 
the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners may authorize those parcels for 
sale at some lesser amount, and it is the recommendation of said Special 
Committee along with the County Mayor, same being the minimum bid 
amount; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the fair price hereinafter referred to as the minimum bid amount, was 

determined to be a fair and reasonable price. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 

ASSEMBLED: 
 



 

 

 

 

 That the parcels of property listed on the attached list which were acquired 
through previous delinquent tax sales are hereby offered for sale at the 
minimum bid amount shown which has been determined to be a fair and 
reasonable price, all parcels identified by State Tax Map Numbers, the 
complete list and bidding information being attached and incorporated herein 
by reference thereto as though fully and completely copied verbatim herein. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 

AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 



























 

 

No. 114-28 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE CONTINUED ENGAGING OF WILL DENAMI AS 
LOBBYIST FOR HAMILTON COUNTY BEFORE THE TENNESSEE GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY. 
 

WHEREAS,  by Resolution No. 113-15 this county legislative body 
approved the recommendation of the County Mayor to engage 
Will Denami as lobbyist for Hamilton County to look after the 
interests of Hamilton County and its citizens before the 
Tennessee General Assembly in 2013; and  

WHEREAS,  said Will Denami did an excellent job of keeping the various 
elected officials of Hamilton County abreast of the various 
pieces of legislative changes that were proposed before said 
General Assembly during the 2013 calendar year, as well as 
promote those matters which Hamilton County officials had 
requested consideration by the General Assembly; and  

WHEREAS,  upon the recommendation of the County Mayor it is this 
county legislative body’s opinion that the continued 
engagement of Will Denami as lobbyist before the Tennessee 
General Assembly in 2014 is in the best interests of the 
citizens of Hamilton County. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

That Will Denami be, and hereby is, engaged by Hamilton County, Tennessee as a 
lobbyist before the Tennessee General Assembly during the calendar year 2014, and 
continue to receive payment of Twenty Thousand Dollars ($20,000.00) for said 
services, travel and entertainment expenses is hereby approved. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 14, 2014 

  
Date 

 



 

 

No. 114-29 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
 
 
WHEREAS,  the County Mayor proposes an addition to the Hamilton County Employee 

Handbook regarding Distracted Driving while in Hamilton County vehicles or 
in personal vehicles while on official business 

 
WHEREAS,  pursuant to Resolution 1179-16, the Hamilton County Board of 

Commissioners must approve amendments to the Employee Handbook; and 
 
WHEREAS,  a copy of the proposed Distracted Driving section for the Employee Handbook 

is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, as a though fully and 
completely copies verbatim; and 

 
  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 

ASSEMBLED: 
 
 Effective January 15, 2014, the attached new section 509 A of the Hamilton 

County Government Employee Handbook is hereby adopted. 
 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS  
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 



New Handbook Policy – 509A  All Hamilton County Employees are expected to observe all relevant 

laws when using cell phones and other portable devices while operating a Hamilton County vehicle or 

a personal vehicle while on official business. 

All Hamilton County Employees are expected to observe all Hamilton County Handbook Policies 

when using cell phone and other portable electronic computing devices while operating a Hamilton 

County vehicle or a personal vehicle while on official business. 

• Hamilton County Employees are expected to stop driving before conducting business 
electronically or are expected to use hands-free devices (Bluetooth devices) while driving. 
 

• Hamilton County Employees may not use a hand-held cell phone while operating a vehicle – 
whether the vehicle is in motion or stopped at a traffic light. This includes, but is not limited to, 
answering or making phone calls, engaging in phone conversations, and reading or 
responding to emails, instant messages, and text messages.  

 
• If Hamilton County Employees are unable to use a hands-free device (Bluetooth device) and 

need to use their hand-held cell phones, they must pull over safely to the side of the road or 
another safe location. 
 

• Additionally, Hamilton County employees are required to: 
o Turn cell phones off or put them on silent or vibrate before starting the car. 
o Consider modifying voice mail greetings to indicate that you are unavailable to 

answer calls or return messages while driving. 
o Inform clients, associates and business partners of this policy as an explanation of 

why calls may not be returned immediately. 
 

Hamilton County Employees who are reimbursed for business calls made from their cell phones 

should certify that the phone has not been used in any way that violates company policy.  

Company-owned electronic devices may be monitored at anytime to ensure compliance with the 

policy.  Any violation of this provision may result in disciplinary action, up to and including 

termination. 

 



 

 

No. 114-30 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PAYMENT OF ONE HUNDRED EIGHTY 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($180,000.00) IN SETTLEMENT OF CLAIMS AGAINST 
HAMILTON COUNTY AS BROUGHT BY FORMER EMPLOYEE OF THE 
HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT NANCY BECKHAM FOR 
WRONGFUL TERMINATION. 

 

WHEREAS, litigation has been instituted against Hamilton County, Tennessee by former 
Health Department employee Nancy Beckham for her alleged wrongful 
termination; and  

  
WHEREAS, both Hamilton County, Tennessee denies the allegations of the complaint and 

assert that Ms. Beckham’s termination was for just cause; and 
 
WHEREAS, through non-binding mediation attended by the respective parties with counsel, 

the recommendation of the mediator, and subject to the approval of this county 
legislative body, a settlement of One Hundred Eighty Thousand Dollars 
($180,000.00) has been reached for the complete satisfaction of any and all 
claims that said plaintiff has or might have against Hamilton County; and   

 
WHEREAS, this county legislative body feels that the payment of said amount would be in 

the best interest of the citizens of Hamilton County, and would bring about a 
fair disposition of this matter.   

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
  
 



 

 

 

 

 
 
That subject to the execution of a full release satisfactory to the County Attorney, the payment 
of One Hundred Eighty Thousand Dollars ($180,000.00) is hereby authorized to be paid to 
Nancy Beckham, including her expenses and attorney fees, for the full and complete 
settlement of any and all claims that said plaintiff has or might have against Hamilton County, 
for her alleged wrongful termination from the Hamilton County Health Department.. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 



 

 

No. 114-31 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

 A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE INSURANCE BUDGET OF HAMILTON 
COUNTY, TENNESSEE BY THE SUM OF FIFTY EIGHT THOUSAND TWO 
HUNDRED FORTY AND 39/100 DOLLARS ($58,240.39) TO PROVIDE FOR THE 
PAYMENT OF AN ARBITRATION AWARD TO CAROLINA CASUALTY, AS 
SURETY FOR WDB CONTRACTING, LLC, REGARDING THE SODDY DAISY 
HIGH SCHOOL RENOVATIONS AND GYMNASIUM PROJECT IN 2003. 

WHEREAS, in 2003, Hamilton County awarded a contract for the Soddy Daisy High School 
renovations and gymnasium to WDB Contracting, LLC (“WDB”) with 
Carolina Casualty providing the performance bond for said WDB’s faithful 
performance of its duties related thereto; and  

  
WHEREAS, the contract between Hamilton County and WDB provided for binding 

arbitration in the event there arose a dispute between the parties as to any 
issue(s) surrounding said construction project; and 

 
WHEREAS, in the course of said construction project, there arose a dispute between 

Hamilton County and WDB concerning, among other things, delays in the 
completion of the project; and  

 
WHEREAS, the matters in dispute between the parties were submitted to binding arbitration 

which was had on or about September 28 and 29, 2006, and resulted in an 
award being given to WDB in the amount of Fifty Eight Thousand Two 
Hundred Forty and 39/100 Dollars ($58,240.39); and   

 
WHEREAS, subsequent to said award WDB went out of business and there arose a dispute 

between the principals of WDB and its surety, said Carolina Casualty, and the 
check that had been issued by  Hamilton County in satisfaction of said award 
was never tendered to WDB and/or its surety; and  

 



 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, all matters in controversy between said WDB and Carolina Casualty have now 
been resolved, and Hamilton County has been advised that said award payment 
is to be delivered to Attorney Scott Williams, of Manier & Herod, P.C., as 
attorney for Carolina Casualty; and 

 
WHEREAS, due to the delay in these matters being completely resolved, the initial check in 

the amount of Fifty Eight Thousand Two Hundred Forty and 39/100 Dollars 
($58,240.39) was never tendered and/or negotiated, and no appropriate entry in 
the Hamilton County budget made to reflect said retention of funds and/or re-
issuance of same; and 

 
WHEREAS, the payment of this subsequently resolved issue necessitates the re-issuing of a 

new check by Hamilton County and an amendment to the County budget to 
reflect said payment (from the County’s insurance account); and  

 
WHEREAS, it is the opinion of this county legislative body that said amendment is 

necessary and appropriate, and the payment of said awarded Fifty Eight 
Thousand Two Hundred Forty and 39/100 Dollars ($58,240.39) is in the best 
interest of the citizens of Hamilton County. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
  
That the Hamilton County Insurance Budget be and hereby is amended to reflect the payment 
of the sum of Fifty Eight Thousand Two Hundred Forty and 39/100 Dollars ($58,240.39) to 
Carolina Casualty as surety for WDB Contracting, LLC, as awarded by a binding arbitration of 
2006, and that said sum be forwarded to Attorney Scott Willaims, of Manier & Herod, P.C., as 
attorney for Carolina Casualty. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 

 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 


	agenda 1-15-14
	515.114-_S_Minutes_November 27 2013 Recessed Minutes_11-27-13 Recessed
	516.114-_S_Minutes_November 27 2013 Agenda Session_11-27-13 Agenda
	517.114-_S_Minutes_December 4 2013 Regular Meeting_12-04-13 Regular
	537.114-_S_Minutes_December 11, 2013 Recessed Minutes_12-11-13 Recessed
	536.114-_S_Minutes_December 18, 2013 Recessed Minutes_12-18-13 Recessed
	544.114-_S_Minutes_December 26 2013 Recessed Minutes_12-26-13 Recessed
	564.114-_S_Minutes_January 2 2014 Minutes_01-02-14 Recessed
	562.114-1_R_County Clerk_Notary Public_01-15-14
	562.114-1_S_County Clerk_Notary Public_01-15-14 A
	551.114-2_R_Zoning_Rezoning_Rezoning 10925 Highway 58 Template
	551.114-2_S_Zoning_Rezoning_Rezoning 10925 Highway 58
	554.114-3_R_Zoning_Rezoning_8801 Wandering Way
	554.114-3_S_Zoning_Rezoning_8801 Wandering Way
	555.114-4_R_Zoning_rezoning_Rezoning 9113 and 9153 Highway 58
	555.114-4_S_Zoning_rezoning_Rezoning 9113 and 9153 Highway 58
	556.114-5_R_Zoning_Rezoning_5108 Highway 60
	556.114-5_S_Zoning_Rezoning_5108 Highway 60
	523.114-_S_Report - Order of Designation - Todd Leamon_Report - Order of Designation - Todd Leamon_Order of Designation -  Planning Commission - Todd Leamon - 12-
	524.114-_S_Report_Report_Order of Designation - Transportation Planning Organization - T
	525.114-_S_Report - Order of Reappointment - Frank Gove, Jr._Report - Order of Reappointment - Frank Gove, Jr._Order of Reappontment - Walden's Ridge Utility District - Frank
	565.114-_S_Report_designation_Order of Designation - Transportation Planning Organization - J
	535.114-_S_Report_Trustee Monthly Report_Trustee Monthly Report - November 2013
	531.114-_S_Report_Trustee Excess Fee Report_Trustee Excess Fee Report - November 2013
	520.114-6_R_Sheriff Hammond_Microsoft Windows 8 Pro Upgrade Volume Licenses_Res. Microsoft Windows 8 Pro-upgrade volume licenses
	520.114-6_S_Sheriff Hammond_Microsoft Windows 8 Pro Upgrade Volume Licenses_(200) MS Windows 8 Pro-upgrade volume licenses
	528.114-7_R_Sheriff Hammond_4X4 Crew Cab Truck_Res. Crew Cab Pickup Truck Sheriff
	528.114-7_S_Sheriff Hammond_4X4 Crew Cab Truck_4X4 Crew Cab Pickup Truck Sheriff
	532.114-8_R_Sheriff Hammond_Inmate Video Visitation_Res. Inmate Video Visitation
	532.114-8_S_Sheriff Hammond_Inmate Video Visitation_Inmate Video Visitation
	561.114-9 _R_Sam Mairs_YSO Grant for Juvenile Court Detention Center_YSO RESOLUTION 2014
	563.114-10_R_Sam Mairs_Juvenile Court Fire Alarm & Security Control system Upgrade_Res  Fire Alarm and Security Updates at Juvenile Child Support
	563.114-10_S_Sam Mairs_Juvenile Court Fire Alarm & Security Control System Upgrade_1825_001
	512.114-11_R_Bill McGriff_One (1) Heavy Duty Cargo Van_Res. One Heavy Duty Van
	512.114-11_S_Bill McGriff_One (1) Heavy Duty Cargo Van_Heavy Duty Cargo Van
	513.114-13_R_Louis Wright_Contract with TBI_TBI TMTF Contract Resolution
	513.114-13_S_Louis Wright_Contract with TBI_TBI TMTF Contract 2014
	534.114-14_R_Louis Wright_Fuel November 2013_Fuel Resolution November 2013 (fy 2014)
	534.114-14_S_Louis Wright_Fuel November 2013_Fuel November 2013 supporting docs
	514.114-15_R_Don Allen_Homeland Security Grant_Resolution Homelamd Security Grant
	566.114-16_R_Becky Barnes_HRSA Affordable Care Act Insurance_HRSA Resolution 2014
	566.114-16_S_Becky Barnes_HRSA Affordable Care Act Insurance_HRSA Supporting Document
	527.114-17_R_Todd Leamon_Construction of the East Brainerd Elementary School_Res. East Brainerd Elementary Construction
	527.114-17_S_Todd Leamon_Construction of the East Brainerd Elementary School_East Brainerd Elementary School Construction
	529.114-18_R_Todd Leamon_4x4 Pickup Truck_Res. 4X4 Pickup Truck
	529.114-18_S_Todd Leamon_4x4 Pickup Truck_(1) 4X4 Pickup Truck
	541.114-19_R_Todd Leamon_Road Resolution_Kennerly Court Road Resolutin
	542.114-20_R_Todd Leamon_Road Resolution_Maple Grove Lane Road Resolution
	533.114-21_R_Todd Leamon_Emergency Vehicle Storage Building_Res. HC Emergency Vehicle Storage Bldg Construction
	533.114-21_S_Todd Leamon_Emergency Vehicle Storage Building_HC Emergency Vehicle Storage Bldg.
	546.114-22_R_Todd Leamon_Lease Agreement_NS Lease Agreement Res
	546.114-22_S_Todd Leamon_Lease Agreement_NS Lease Agreement Attachment
	547.114-23_R_Todd Leamon_License Agreement_NS License Agreement Res
	547.114-23_S_Todd Leamon_License Agreement_NS License Agreement Attachment 1
	547.114-23_S_Todd Leamon_License Agreement_NS License Agreement Attachment 2
	548.114-24_R_Todd Leamon_Easement Agreement_PSC Metals Easement Res
	548.114-24_S_Todd Leamon_Easement Agreement_PSC Metals Easement Attachment
	549.114-25_R_Todd Leamon_Easement Agreement_City of Chattanooga Easement Res
	549.114-25_S_Todd Leamon_Easement Agreement_City of Chattanooga Easment attachment
	550.114-26_R_Todd Leamon_Easement Agreement_CSX Easement Res
	550.114-26_S_Todd Leamon_Easement Agreement_CSX Easement Attachment
	560.114-27_R_Todd Leamon_Property Sale 2014_Res. 2014 Sale Min. Bids
	560.114-27_S_Todd Leamon_Property Sale 2014_Res. Attachment
	538.114-28_R_Rheubin Taylor_Will Denami's renewal of contract as lobbyist for Hamilton County_Will Denami's Renewal of Contract as Lobbyist for Hamilton County
	557.114-29_R_County Mayor_Handbook Amendment_Modify the Employee Handbook
	557.114-29_S_County Mayor_Handbook Amendment_DistDrivHandbook
	Res114-30
	Res114-31



